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Introduction 

Hello and welcome to the first edition of ‘Barrhead Banter’.  Now, you may be wondering what this is about.  Well, we have been writing stories that are set before time to the end of the world, on different planets and fantasy lands. Some are based on historical events; some are made up nonsense.

We hope you enjoy reading our stories and if you’d like to join the group come along to Room 35 at lunchtimes on Monday, Tuesday and Thursday.

From the Barrhead Bards.

Contents

Dragon Attack by Hunter                                                                              
Page 2

Legend Of The Ninja Master by Phoenix                                                  
Page 4
Darkness by Scarlet







Page 7

Monster Hunter by  Dragon 






Page 8

Bomb! By Cat








Page 20

Humanity’s Last Hope by Hunter                                                       
Page 23

Legend of The Chinese Assassin by Phoenix                    


Page 30  
Dragon Attack

by Hunter

Good day my fellow adventurers. Currently it is the year 1473. I am 41 year old Arvel Thomway, an ex Beast Hunter, and this is my story. To begin with, I was born in 1432 in the town of Galstead. At the age of 15, I moved to Salbry, my current home. My parents, who are sadly deceased now were called Ella Thomway, and Jack Thomway. My father died in 1451 and my mother in 1467. Now I have a new family, a wife named Alicia, and a son named Henry. In this story I will be telling you of my most dangerous battle as a Beast Hunter. This is the story of how my father died. This is the story of when I became a beast hunter. This is the story of when I fought a dragon, and won.

There was a rustle in the bushes, and a rabbit bounded out. “Yes! Here’s my dinner” I thought to myself. I pulled back the string of my bow. Twang! I let the string go, and the arrow pierced the rabbit, killing it instantly. I stood up and walked towards the corpse. I pulled the arrow out, and then collected the corpse, before slinging it over my shoulder and beginning the trek back home. Suddenly a large black shape soared overhead, towards my village. I dropped the rabbit carcass and charged forward, hoping to warn my village of the dragon. When I arrived, I was too late. My village was ablaze. I dropped to my knees and screamed. “Nooooooo!!!!!”

I probably would have stayed on my knees, sobbing my heart out, if it weren’t for the fact I heard my father scream. I looked up just in time to see the dragon gobble him whole. I entered a fit of pure rage. “You burned my village! You killed my father! You are going to die!” I shouted, charging wildly at the dragon. I threw my knife which hit the dragons left eye, splattering blood all over its face The dragon roared, before shooting a fireball in my direction. I would have died, if it wasn’t for one of the town guards, who jumped in front of me and held out his shield, deflecting the fireball. “Thank you,” I said, before getting to my feet and chasing after the now retreating dragon. I ran up the stairs of one of the towers in the village, before leaping out a hole left by the dragon, onto its back.

The dragon soared high in the sky, before doing a barrel roll, trying to make me fall off. I gripped tightly, and crawled up its scaly back. I grabbed its head and shouted “For Salbry!”, before jabbing my dagger 

into its remaining eye. It screamed in outrage, before plummeting to the ground.

I thought I was going to die. The dragon was plummeting nearly vertically towards Salbry. It pulled up at the last moment, and scraped along the ground, digging a trench. It only stopped when its head smashed against the stone wall surrounding the remains of Salbry. I jumped off, before grabbing a sword lying beside a decapitated town guard. The dragon moaned, opening its mouth, giving me the chance to lob the sword into its mouth, straight into its gigantic throat, before it lodged in its stomach. The dragon started jittering, and steam began to hiss from above it. “Get down!” I screamed before running away from the body. I heard a loud boom, turned round, and there was nothing there, except a dragon’s tooth, on a 

small bone, fashioned into a dagger. I ran forwards, and picked it up. The tooth was razor sharp, and looked like it would cut through metal. I picked it up, and sheathed it where my old dagger used to be. Some survivors of the wreckage  came to me and showered me in praise. “You saved us! Thank you! You’re our hero!” 

Somehow I did it. I vanquished a great evil from this land. I destroyed a dragon, and realised my potential as a Beast Hunter. I was still one until a few years ago. I have fought, and killed many strange and mysterious beasts, and may even kill more.

The Legend of the Ninja Mercenary 

by Phoenix

Chapter 1

A Story to be Told

Peter was a young Ninja who lived in a great Ninja village. He had 7 ninja friends -  Sophie, Euan, Liam, Luke, Mark, Jade and Dillon. Peter was a handsome young lad who had medium length brown hair, dazzling  green eyes,  a broad chest, long legs. He bore a ninjato, shurakain, a bow and arrow, a blowpipe and various other items. This is his story of his quest to become a ninja mercenary. 

Chapter 2

Friend or Foe

Kaia!!! I scream as I lock swords with Dillon as splinters fly all over the place. Dillon is pushing harder throwing me back. I flip to avoid landing on my rear.

But as soon as I land he is on to me. Slashing and hacking. In the end Dillon manages to clip my leg I trip landing on my back. I am about to get up when Dillon is standing over me. He raises his sword and for a moment he just holds that position. Well done I say. He offers me a hand. Reluctantly I take it only to flip him over my shoulder he laughs at this and we both get to our feet. Suddenly my rival Jack approaches he glares at me. I glare right back at him. Next match Peter versus Jack.      

Chapter 3

Flames Technique

I line up with Jack but before the match has even started Jack is calling for real swords! The referee is about to argue when the grandmaster of the Ninja Academy raises his hand for silence. For a moment everyone stares at him. The master nods his head at the referee then nods at Jack. I grab my ninjato, its gleaming blade glowing in the sun light. I strap it to my back and 
walk back to the ring. The match is about to begin. I unsheathe my sword. BEGIN! Sean is the first to attack.                         

Lunging at me I retaliate with a simple block and side kick to his side.  He stumbles but keeps his feet. I attack and so does Jack. There is a clash and steel sparks fly. I am thrown back and land next to a barrel of oil. I dip it in to the barrel and pull out my knife and clash them together and the sword bursts in to flames. At seeing Jack shaking this technique I say let me heat up this competition.               

Chapter 4

Dancing with flames

I flip through through the air and smash my sword on to Jack. He blocks with his sword but I hit with such force it breaks the steel from its hilt. But I don’t stop there. I keep on the onslaught. I punch him right in the gut and kick him in the chest but before he can fall I sweep him and strike him down to the floor Jack is about to get back up but I realize I am next to the barrel since the arena has a deep line in it all around it I tip it and once I am inside I lower my sword so it goes to the oil the arena lights up I stand above him Adrenalin calling me to strike down but Jack curls up in to a ball so I stand down Jack is still quivering. The referee is trying to drench the flames at that moment Sean flips me onto the flames. At that moment an arrow bursts in to the room and sets the field ablaze. 

Samurai burst into the room. I get up my back is in pain this may be my final battle but before I can reach my sword a samurai is about to strike down but from out of nowhere his hand comes flying off blood splatters my face and I expect to feel different but I don’t instead I blink away the blood and see a girl dressed in samurai armour at first I think about snapping her neck but I flip over her and snap the next samurais neck instead. Who are you I mutter she remains silent. She takes of her helmet to reveal turquoise eyes, brown her with a pleat at the back of her hair. I run. Its suicide to stay here.       

Chapter 5

An impossible battle

I throw myself at my sword it is a metre away. I pick it up me see all my ninja being slain. I begin to run into battle I need to help them. I slash at a 
samurai he falls to the ground so slowly I have time to jump off his body giving me extra altitude I land in the circle of ninja. Nice of you to drop by Says Dillon. We need to get out of here I say. An arrow embeds it self in my chest. I tear it from my chest yelling in agony and anger. You okay asks Luke. Yeah fine I reply we need to get out of here he replies with a simple nod and sprints off followed by Jade, Mark and Euan. Sophie is trailing behind so Liam picks her up and runs. Dillon and I are last so we begin to run but I see something no someone not in samurai armour but in ninja armour murdering other ninja… Jack     

Chapter 6

The Great Escape

We begin to run its hard to find are way through this smoke and there are bodies everywhere. I trip and fall, Dillon helps me up. We need to find our way out of here I say. It’s going to be hard. I know but lets try. I pull my hood over my face and pull my mask over my face. Dillon does the same. We begin to find our way it’s hard. But we manage. Now let’s rendezvous with the others I say. I agree replies Dillon through smoky fire. Out of nowhere a sword comes flying. I manage to dodge it but Dillon is not so lucky it slices through his leg and he yells out in agony. I need to get him out of here now so I take him up on my shoulder and begin to run. I can’t see but I don’t care. 

Darkness

by Scarlet

I sat alone in my mother’s living room all by myself. I was bored and tired. My mother was away on her night shift and my little brother was at a sleepover. I was feeling exasperated when the door bell suddenly rang ……how strange who would come too the door at this hour? Hesitantly I went to the door and as I placed my hand on the large, gold doorknob and felt a sudden chill … Slowly I opened the door and … there was nothing there but a darkened, gloomy, eerie street. “Stupid kids playing chappy” I grumbled. I shut the door but then the bell rang again.  I didn’t open it.

I was kinda freaked out, I’m not sure why.  There was a cold swet running down my forehead and my stomach was in a tight knot. I just felt really scared.  I dashed to the living room and phoned my friend Shannon and I asked if I could stay at hers… “great I’m so bored over here!” she said with enthusiasm.  Hurriedly,I grabbed a bag and stuffed my clothes in it.  I stumbled to the front door but an instinct at the back of my mind told me not to.  I went for the backdoor and ran into the night but what I didn’t know is that a creature of the dead followed close behind hungry for my flesh..

The sharp cold air was a shock at first but my body soon adjusted to the freezing temperature. I quickly got to Shannon’s house as I had run the whole way, terrified of something I yet did not know.  She greeted me with a great big bear hug and I think she could tell something was wrong but she didn’t question me.  We weren’t really sure what to do but we eventually decided to invite my other friend over for a mini sleepover party. 

We had only just started raving to loud pop music when all the lights suddenly flickered and went out. We screamed.  The only source of light was streetlights which gave out an unnatural orange glow -  but they shouldn’t have been on if there was a power cut. What was going on ?? 

We made a plan to go to the shops and get some food, glow sticks and torches so we could see. We made our way out into the cold,damp night and I thought I saw something out of the corner of my eye, something inhuman, something cold and dead,  But if there had been anything there it was certainly not there now.  My other friend Kate said she knew a shortcut.  We followed her but after awhile we ended up getting lost. “Some great shortcut!” We walked on and eventually came to a dark alleyway and there was the cheerful glow of shop lights at the bottom.  I felt relief but I had a gut feeling not to go down there  - I didn’t want to seem wimpy in front of my friends…

So we crept along the alleyway everything became suddenly very quiet.  Our pace quickened as we sensed danger and then a flurry of black whooshed passed us, claws screeched down the wall, blood sprayed across the path and gory remains fell to the ground. The pain was piercing. I wished for death to come to me there and then. The gods must have taken pity on me for everything went black and pain….. Was no more.

Monster Hunter

by Dragon

Chapter 1 

The War
One misty day in Port Tanzia an old man looked at the sea. The waves rippled in the chilled breeze, and ships sailing to and from the port. Hunters came and had food, met with other hunters, and accepted quests - some successful, some not. He looked away and strode towards a tall building. It was made from wood and stone. He swung the door open and a bustle of children crowded around him. He was the story teller and the children loved him. Children from the guild. 
“Oh please Fred, tell a good story this time!” piped up a small boy with green eyes.
“Have you ever heard the tale of Stephen...?” Fred replied while taking out a pipe and lighting it.
“No,” the children rang more or less together.
“Then I will tell you,” Fred mused.
“One day there was man named Stephen, who at birth the Wyvern Astrians sighed and said, “This boy is a curse, a murderer and he will bring devastation to the land.” They also said to leave him either in the woods to starve, be eaten or let Bnahabras lay eggs in him. The mother chose for him to be eaten so she took the baby to the river to be discovered by a monster and die.”
“But one day a Rathian was coming to get a drink, when she heard a cry, a baby’s cry. She went to investigate and discovered the baby. Instead of eating him she took the baby to her nest and raised him. She had a child herself. A Rathalos, the boys were like brothers. Things were fine until one day an Azurous got into a fight with the Rathian and in the end killed her. Stephen and his brother swore revenge and as adults and with more hunters, they set of to kill all monsters and be the rulers of the land. This led to conflict and therefore nearly the extinction of monsters.”
“But one day during the war the Rathalos realised his mistake and along with two of Stephens friends flung them off his back. Stephen and his friends landed in the Volcano where they met a Brachydios. A female hunter met a Lagiacrus and the rest met a Rathian. In the end the monsters won killing Stephen, the killer.”
One girl took all the information in and then asked “What happened to the Rathalos?” It was a good question luckily he had a good answer.
“He lived for betraying Stephen.” Suddenly the guild helper crashed in an insane grin on her face.

Chapter 2 
Moga Village
“I have news!” she practically shouted holding a hat “And guess what, it’s to go to a village!” The whole room bustled into life until she screamed trying to be heard, “BUT WE HAVN’T CHOSEN A HUNTER TO GO YET, SO LET’S SEE WHO’S NAME COMES OUT THE HAT!” Silence filled the room as she fumbled into the hat, one minute later she pulled out a piece of paper “The name is... Victoria!” All eyes fell on Victoria the girl that asked the question. She had long flowing brown hair, bright blue eyes and a sweet smile. But she was shy and certainly didn’t want to go to a village. “But I don’t want to go why not someone else?” she asked but already since the storyteller finished his story, the room was defiling and everyone left except the storyteller. He walked to Victoria, bent down and whispered “Remember Stephen who had a son, who had a son, who had a son... who had a daughter.” Before Victoria could ask what on earth he was talking about he wasn’t there. How does that concern me, she thought. 
Sometime later she was on a boat with words scratched on wood, MOGA VILLAGE Victoria stared at it wondering whether or not it was a good place. She thought of a song that cheered her up.

“Ge yan de doomano goo go ran nam bey roodansa, 

Ge yan de doomano goo go ran nam bey ramanja,

Maho ran dooreyja le soo don uej ojen nef bey,

Bey you jay ran manavoo moray, goo ra bey wo, 

Goo ree oon ta, bra joo ra,

Mye go say renga, Yey Ba Sha,

Bay mey le nee oomandoo moray, yee boo beya, 

Bao ma mabay ba mo na,

Bay ha say renga, Shanggasay,

Do roo way sa pompayo,

Yan nan sa ma ra madoray, 

Yoo do goo wey ga Edgymo, 

Ban sa wan danjay majeyna, 

Mojenbay”
She sung it in her head; the song was in the old language. Mojenbay means happiness. Storytellers say that this is Nature’s song, when the new guardian of the land is chosen by the land; she is not needed and will only appear, when the world needs her once again to call the guardian. Now the boat arrived at Moga village. 

 Chapter 3 

Getting To the Point
Wooden floor boards suspended above the calm water, carpets sprawled over the boards as people sold various items. As the boat slowed to a stop, a man with white 
hair, dark skin and a pipe in his mouth greeted her. “Hello you must be the new hunter... what’s your name?”

“Victoria.” She quipped, he laughed.

“I wonder who gave you THAT name!” he continued to laugh until tears were running down his cheek. “Sorry, sorry interesting name really. Come into my house.” He lead her into a small house, it had windows but no glass, carpets that were as bright as a rainbow and a bed and box. A box, why not a closet Victoria thought as she was led to a chair, which was a faded green. “See we have this… problem, have you heard of a Lagiacrus?”

“Yes I have, the storyteller at the guild mentioned about a “Lagiacrus””

“Ah but do you know WHAT a Lagiacrus is?” he said looking very pleased with himself.

“Erm no.” she said.

“Well, well, well.” He mused as he lit his pipe “That is interesting.” He reached into his box and pulled out a tattered book. “Have you been given this?” Victoria shook her head, “This is a Monster List it has every single monster from Aptonoth to Alatreon.” He gave the tattered list to her. The colour was a faded red and a faded blue, the colours of the guild flags, one blue and one red. She was led out of the hut-like house and into the rest of the bustling small village. “The Lagiacrus has been causing trouble lately that’s why I called for a hunter but I never expected… a kid.” He patted her on the back and strode into his house laughing as he did so. Victoria looked around and walked towards a girl with short black hair and a red, black and white uniform.
“Hello,” greeted Victoria as she sat on the chair opposite the desk.
“Oh hello I didn’t see you there.” She chirped she looked like she was eighteen with shining green eyes like emeralds. “Your name is…” she mumbled letting Victoria end the sentence in which she did. She told the teen all about herself and the teen did the same, she told Victoria that people in the village call her “Sweetheart”. The guild sweetheart. After the long chat Victoria felt hungry. The chief gave her a hut-like house and left the hut saying “Chamberlyne will bring you your food.” As he said a felyne came in saying “My name is Chamberlyne I am here whenever you need me.” He was carrying a plate of food. As Victoria munched on the bread that provided she read her “Monster List” and researched about felynes.  

It said that felynes would go into human society and when provoked they will attack aggressively, but it was getting dark and the sun was setting behind the mountains. She closed her eyes.

Chapter 4
First Quest
The next day, Victoria woke up with a back ache from lying on a hard mattress. After eating breakfast she walked into the village centre and saw that the mess was cleaned up, the fish from the fish mongress was neatly in rows, the shops items were cleaned up and the vases that broke were swept up. The Guild Sweetheart beckoned Victoria over, and when she arrived said in a small whisper “You have a quest, but it’s odd.” The quest was to gather 3 Unique Mushrooms; Victoria completed this 
without a problem. The next week or so was filled with quests and getting Moga Village up and running, then in came the first KILLING quest. Victoria had slain some small monsters like Jaggi and Jaggia, Baggi, Wroggi and Ludroth; but never 
killed a large monster before. She went to the Sandy Plains and fought the monster; it was like Jaggi with purple pink hide and barbs on its tail. She captured the 
magnificent beast. The quest ended and the Great Jaggi was released; the village greeted her with pleasure knowing it could be difficult for a child. Then a new quest arrived. It was to capture an Azurous, in the Deserted Isle. She ran to the Deserted Isle after accepting the quest and she found the Azurous eating honey. As she crept near him she stepped on a twig, it reared up on its hind legs. It held up its armoured front arms and swiped at Victoria. After capturing the bear like Azurous an alarming quest arrived.    

Chapter 5

Have You Ever Seen a Midget?

One of the boys of the village swore they saw a pixie and begged the Guild to make this a quest for Victoria and the Guild Master made sure it was done.
This alarmed the Chiefs son or Junior. Could a Shakalaka tribe have moved into the woods, could they kill everyone in Moga Village? When Victoria came to him for advice he tried to fill her in with all he knew. “Shakalaka are dangerous, they are half our size, but don’t underestimate them they are vicious bloodthirsty brutes. Just take care OK.” She nodded her head and walked away ready for the quest, Junior thought to himself, I hope she is ok and won’t be hurt badly, and went back to work. The truth was everyone grew to love the girl; she always smiled and was cheerful if not a bit silly. She went to do the quest.
The Deserted Isle was a beautiful place, the water rushed past her feet, she felt like she was in heaven; the wind was a breeze and the trees gently swayed. Then a cry filled the air “HELP! HELP CHA-CHA. ME WILL BE MONSTER CHOW-CHOW!” Victoria rushed towards the screaming voice, ready to help.
The Jaggia swarmed around him, he knew this was it to be eaten alive by monsters. Clutching his staff he braced himself for the first bite and screamed “HELP! HELP, HELP CHA-CHA. ME WILL BE MONSTER CHOW-CHOW!” The Jaggia advanced… only to be knocked back again with a stunning dual blade combo.

Victoria was shocked but kept it in her. There was really such thing as Shakalakas, small and green with an acorn shaped mask and a hula-type skirt and sandals. He held a staff with a jagged shell attached with rope and he was pulling out a boomerang and threw it at the Jaggia killing them, he dug underground and then in a different area screamed “AGH CHA-CHOCK FULL OF MONSTERS!” Sighing she raced to that area.
There she was the hunter coming and saving him from the advancing Ludroth. Their yellow hides marked with their own blood, and claws marked with them accidently hitting their own kin. They were slain and he dug again and reaching an area with Jaggi in it. He screamed the words again as one bit him.
Victoria combos killed the Jaggi easily and without hesitation the Shakalaka dug and disappeared, later sighing “Ah Cha-Cha safe.” She ran to her camp and saw him. He 
ran up to her saying “Oh hunter cha-champion. Me thought Cha-Cha was monster chow-chow.” The quest was done and Victoria needed a word with Junior after that.                   
Chapter 6

Cha-Cha and the Lagiacrus
The village laughed when the Shakalaka danced a funny dance, happy to be alive. Junior was having his ear talked off by Victoria, after what she’s seen. The Lad was just glad Victoria didn’t kill the Shakalaka, but he knew that she was the kindest hunter he’d ever met. Victoria walked to the Shakalaka and started talking to him, asking who was Cha-Cha and what happened to him for him to end up in the woods like that. “Cha-wa is your brain hurty-hurty. I’m the lone wolf Cha-Cha, warrior of Shakalaka tribe. Me on a long time walky-walky, on legendary journeys Cha-Cha spy gold mask, make eye-holes go oga-oga. Then mask go is long sad tale, make Cha-Cha very upset.” 
He later demanded that Victoria was now his minion! They did a lot of quests after that, capturing Lagombi, Gobul, Giginox, Great Baggi, Great Wroggi, Royal Ludroth, Quropeco and Barroth. That was a lot of large monsters and they even went to capture a Rathian. They successfully did it now were the best of friends. Then the Village Chief walked up to the dynamic duo and said “Now the real challenge starts… we need you to hunt… the Lagiacrus.” A shiver went down their spines, they repelled it once… they nearly died but they knew its attacks. Now they needed to decide capture or kill.
The sun shone on his teeth the water rippled as an Epioth swam by, his blue hide enjoying the warmth. His wounds healed and he was sheltering from the pain of being scared of two kids, the other monsters made fun of him. He was waiting until they forgot about it when a voice echoed through the tunnel, “Me will smash his head-head till it bleeds alumpa.”     

“Cha-Cha we are CAPTURING not killing.” He closed his eyes then spun round to face the kids and let out an almighty roar.

Cha-Cha ran and combo after combo, danced when Victoria was low on health, the Lagiacrus’ electricity lighting the battle field in a blue blaze. Victoria’s fire Brother Flames blades heat the battle up with every strike, flames engulfing the air. The battle continued for forty minutes filled with roaring, slashing and explosions. The Lagiacrus limped away, it was ready to capture. Lightning blazed, trap set, coming towards it, stuck, tranquilised… done. It was over all over.

Chapter 7 
Bye-Bye Cha-Cha Hello Kayamba
Victoria was glad, the Lagiacrus was under her control, the Guild said that Hunters that are Hunter Rank 5 or over could keep the monsters they capture if they wanted to. She did but the Lagiacrus wasn’t happy, neither was Victoria.
Late that night Victoria was sitting in her bed… Cha-Cha was gone. The Chief and Junior said he would return fat chance. She felt alone her best friend was gone, then a voice whispered “What’s wrong boss?” she spun her head round and saw 
Chamberlyne standing at the door. “Nothing I’m fine really,” Victoria muttered under her breath. Chamberlyne sat beside her and said. “You miss Cha-Cha nya?” 
She nodded her head that was the problem, “I miss him too nya. He was cheerful, he’ll be back.” Victoria groaned slightly “That what’s EVERYONE says!” 
“Nya, nya meow, you can trust a Felyne. I miss my friend who works in the Tanzian Grill, and I’m here, if that’s any help.” He murmured cheerfully, Victoria watched Chamberlyne leave until he stopped and said, “You need your purrfect rest nya,” and closed the door silently. Victoria lay in bed and saw the Lagiacrus watching the sea and Aptonoth walk and lay to sleep. She would do something no one did before soon, she knew she would.
The next day she accepted the quest “Lord of the seas” to capture a Lagiacrus, she would not keep it. The fight and capture was long without Cha-Cha but it was worth it.  A new quest came up saying that some people thought they saw Cha-Cha. She had to hunt a Durumboros as well. She went to the Flooded Forest determined to save Cha-Cha… except it wasn’t Cha-Cha…
The Durumboros slept in a peaceful slumber when a Shakalaka kid came and attacked its tail; it woke up and started to attack him. The blue masked kid ran and attacked, ran and attacked. Soon he fainted. That was a bad cart, thought Victoria remembering how sore carting was in battle. The fight chewed on her 50 minute time limit; she completed it in 45 minutes. She was exhausted afterwards and found out that that Shakalaka was called Kayamba. He was a bit more sensible, with a blue pincer mask, a coat like shoal and a shell on his back and sandals. Together they completed the quest to hunt a Volvodin when news struck.

Chapter 8
The Earthquakes are Proven
Cha-Cha and Kayamba did not get along at first. The Lagiacrus was walking in the woods under Victoria’s watchful eye, and Victoria recently discovered some things. She could actually talk to monsters, her mum was killed when she was giving birth to her. Lagiacrus (the Lagiacrus’ name) was friends with her dad, her dad was killed and that the other monsters were friendly when you got to know them. The Great Jaggi was called Joe, Great Wroggi was Sebastian, Great Baggi was Sam, Quropeco was Max, Royal Ludroth was Jake and the other monsters were what their monster names were. Rathian came one day with bad news “Have you guys seen a big white, bearded monster in the water?” she asked. Lagiacrus shook his head and said the others in different regions don’t know either. Victoria was entrusted (with Cha-Cha, Kayamba and Lagiacrus) to inform the village. The Chief didn’t look happy.

“Ceadeus…” he muttered 

“What?” enquired Cha-Cha.

 “Wha!” Kayamba’s mouth flew open at the thought of a new monster.

“You have to BEAT that Ceadeus!”  Junior growled sternly.

“OK, ok, ok yeesh!” gasped Victoria in frustration. Then a bit later asked, “What IS a Ceadeus?”

“A Ceadeus is a monster with a long chunky tail, big white beard, is white and when angry some parts of his body glows pinkie red.”

“He also has one huge horn,” concluded Junior folding his arms. Cha-Cha sighed and Kayamba’s mouth stayed open for a long time.  

Chapter 9

The Reveal
The fight with the Ceadeus seemed to drag on before it shouted near death “Wait! I didn’t want to hurt anyone. I was only doing a job!” 

“A job?” Victoria’s voice muffled by the Piscine Mask she was wearing to help her breath. “What… job who sent you?”

“Stephen-“

“WHAT!” Lagiacrus’ voice filled the water rippling in his sudden outburst, “Stephen’s dead!”

“He solidified.” Ceadeus mused trying to calm him down, thunder and lightning sparking everywhere. “He wants to rule the world, and get,” he lowered his voice to a whisper so Victoria wouldn’t hear, “them.”

Cha-Cha and Kayamba freaked out. Stephen solidified, he’s a killer and they froze and he has a great, great granddaughter that was never found. The Rathalos that betrayed him was still alive and them, two midgets, were described in the prophecy of Stephens Resurrection. Then the bad news came “And I think that Victoria is Stephen’s great, great granddaughter.”

“WHAT? I CAN’T BE!” Victoria bellowed her face turning a shade of red, when suddenly Plesioth swam by. “It’s true.” He groaned as blood came out of his fish like head. Victoria didn’t feel well and Cha-Cha and Kayamba didn’t look good either. 

They returned to the village saying that the Ceadeus would never bother them again She went to Moga Woods, the Sandy Plains, the Flooded Forest, Misty Peaks and the Volcano and told everyone the bad news, and Brachydios said that this didn’t surprise him. His great grandmother killed Stephen, and that it was only a matter of time before the most surprising hunter of all time, was related to someone that bad. Agnaktor muttered that Stephen must have been feeding on dead souls to solidify. Devil Jho just wanted to kill Stephen. Then something surprising happened…

Chapter 10
Stephens Revenge Starts Here
In the quiet village of Yokumo Village a little girl and boy were playing when they saw a ghastly figure, the girl turned to the boy and gasped in fear “We have to tell mama Kevin.” They ran to their mum only to find a carcass, and her sword besides her. Kevin grabbed his little sister and muttered “C’mon Madeline let’s go.” They ran to the centre and saw that the villagers were also massacred and they were the only ones left. A man crept behind and could have killed them when Madeline 
screamed and ran with her brother. They ran on a boat were Neko sailed quickly to the village were the hopes lay…

The village was Moga Village.

Chapter 11
Madeline and Kevin
Victoria was trying to work out the cause of Stephens actions. She didn’t believe that killing a whole race was the answer to someone killing one person. Then Neko yelled “We have landed.” Victoria was expecting some tourists when Moga Quakes were over, when a girl and a boy stepped off the boat. They looked like Yokumo 
Villagers. Why would Yokumo Villagers come to Moga, thought Junior as he walked and greeted them.  They looked terrified, pale and they were silent. Then Neko said “Yokumo Village was attacked…” The villagers gasped and the kids were taken to the fish mongress to be given a home. Neko gestured to Victoria, Cha-Cha, Kayamba and Lagiacrus. They went to a shore that had a faint sight of where Yokumo Village lay. They saw smoke. “The person who massacred them is burning their bodies...,” Lagiacrus spoke up, “Who do you think it was?” Neko shrugged and Cha-Cha and Kayamba said together “Stephen!” They all looked at them. Victoria muttered, “Yes… his revenge…”  Lagiacrus then growled they looked at him, Cha-Cha and Kayamba staring at him in a funny way. “He can’t get away with that.”

That noon they asked Madeline and Kevin what happened. They explained, the figure, their dead mum the Chieftess, the slaughter and their dad not returning. The burning, the looting, the pillaging and the dead children. Their dead friends and family and the rest of what happened on that fright full day. They listened and then asked why Yokumo, “I think Stephen doesn’t like Yokumo.” Muttered Kevin,

“I think it’s because Stephen Rathian Mother was killed by a Yokumo Azurous.” Lagiacrus said that Madeline’s guess was the closest and the real reason why was that Yokumo wanted Stephen and his Rathalos brother to join the Guild, they wanted to stay with their Rathian mother and Yokumo sent an Azurous to kill the Rathian. Victoria repeated this and Madeline started sobbing, “I want my Mum!” 

“I guess that’s what Stephen wanted…” Neko grumbled as Lagiacrus curled up around Madeline and Kevin to cheer them up. Madeline rested her head on his warm scales, Kevin hugged his hind leg.
They didn’t realise that Stephen was attacking the most hated place of his life.

Chapter 12
Port Tanzia Falls
The Guild Master didn’t know what village to evacuate Port Tanzia to, Port Sallerate where villagers knew how to hide with monsters or Yokumo Village where they had the best hunters who could easily get Stephen or Moga Village where the legendary Victoria, Cha-Cha and Kayamba lay and lived. He was thinking of Yokumo when Neko’s boat arrived, and he gasped, “Neko saw what happened to Yokumo Village, 
they were massacred. Port Sallerate was the same evacuate them to Moga Village, it’s their only hope!” he concluded, his fur standing on edge. The Guild Master quickly made sure every monster, adult, child and baby were in the boat, some hunters stayed to fight Stephen, they were G-rank. The children that where training to be hunters were evacuated to the boat, then Stephen arrived. “Hello Guild Master or should I say MURDERER!” shouted Stephen in a wild rage easily killing a hunter 
with his great sword. The others were easily massacred and Stephen was near the boat until “RELEASE THE BOATS” the Guild master bellowed his small green face with a moustache going red. The boats were released and as they sailed they saw Port Tanzia go up in roaring flames as they ate the sky. Port Tanzia was no more, and then a chef from the Tanzian Grill asked, “Where are we going nya?”

“Moga Village…” the Guild Master responded, hoping that Neko knew what he was doing.
Chapter 13

The Boy
They walked slowly up the fiery hillside as the flames erupted all around them, it was blazing with heat. Brachydios knew the way, he grew up here, and he also knew what hunter that could help them on their quest to stop Stephen once and for all. Brachydios advanced up, his slime glowed green; his horn covered in the stuff, and saw a young boy about a day older than Victoria and a tiny bit taller. He had short brown hair, aqua blue eyes and held a long sword, Brachydios saw the gem on his head armour, beautiful red gem with lines of blue and halve covered in deep orange. This proved that he was the hunter of the Volcano, he wore Brachydios X armour and his katana was a Brachydios Long Sword. The gem helped him to talk to monsters.
Cha-Cha and Kayamba were eager to meet him, while timid at the same time.  If what Brachydios said was true then he was a higher level than her with stronger armour and maybe a stronger weapon. They slid down the slope and saw the boy; his smiling made them feel uneasy. Then he asked “So these guys must be Cha-Cha and Kayamba, and you’re Victoria. The names Peter.” Victoria nodded while Kayamba asked “Peter. Yam-ba that doesn’t sound like good name like Cha-Cha or me Kayamba.” Cha-Cha laughed at this. Victoria and Peter went to get to know each other while the others waited. He was the same level as her but had stronger armour and a weaker weapon. Cha-Cha and Kayamba were happy. Soon they left the Volcano to look for other hunters.   
Chapter 14 
Cha-Cha and Kayamba Go
Victoria clutched her dual blades as they advanced up the hillside, the mountains where wet and soggy, the mist curled into the air. After hearing what happened to Port Tanzia she wanted no more than Stephen dead. “Alpha what are we going to do when we reach him?” questioned Kevin a small Jaggi, “Kill him,” Joe answered his young pack Jaggi as calmly as he could. Victoria muttered “I swear I will MURDER him when I get my hands on him!” 
Cha-Cha was tired, so was Kayamba. The Misty Peeks seemed to stretch forever, the valleys turning and the streams never ending, the monsters quivering in fear of Stephen it was too much. That and they were hungry and thirsty. They had no food for 3 days and water for 2; if it wasn’t for the monsters travelling with them they wouldn’t know how they would have survived. The monsters where used to this life, everyday wondering where their next meal was going to come, Cha-Cha and 
Kayamba not so much. Then a mysterious monster or human or whatever came and said “I have news…” 
Lagiacrus didn’t trust the Shakalaka much, he was right the moment the delirious kids asked what he meant and the Shakalaka disappeared with them vanishing. David growled but his dad grumbled, “Why would they be taken like that…” Sebastian growled, “Stephen took them Sam. They were special… in a way.” 
Victoria scowled her face turned away and said bitterly “Let’s go back… I know what Stephens going to do, we have to get back fast!” they ran, swam, flew and tunnelled as they raced to the Deserted Isle hoping Victoria was right. When they arrived the village looked different the villagers where all on boats and Junior said loudly, “Stephen is in Moga Woods, there is no hope we have to go.” And gasped when Victoria and her monster friends ran straight into the woods despite their warning.         
Chapter 15
The Fight
Stephen stood there waiting for anyone against his rule, as Port Tanzia and Yokumo Village did, to kill them. Then a cry filled the air, “CHA-CHA GONNA MURDER-MURDER YOU WHEN ME GET OUT-OUT OF HERE ALUMPA, YOU WAIT AND SHAKA-SEE!” Stephen laughed at him; no one could stop him now that the stupid Shakalaka kids were in his hands. As he laughed a voice cried, “Well you’re so tough eh, well come and FIGHT me. You know me right. I’m your great, great granddaughter VICTORIA!” Stephen gasped as Kayamba said smoothly, “Victoria is going to kill ya, you wait and see. Kayamba want to yam-ba-ba see that!” That made Stephen angry and then he saw her.
Victoria saw Stephen wearing the armour he died in, Lagiacrus Z armour and holding his Berserker Blade great sword, while she and Peter were in Nargacuga X armour. Then out of nowhere this boy of about 13 walked on saying “You really think you’re going to beat us. Ha, you must be more stupid than I thought!” Peter knew he was going to fight him whether the boy liked it or not. He was wearing Helios Z armour with the Helios X coil which was really horrible armour (low defence), he had curly black hair and misty grey eyes, and was terribly short for his age. “What’s your name shorty?” Peter jeered at him not expecting him to scream “I AM NOT A SHORTY, and my name’s Jacob, whom you won’t need to know once I’m done with YOU boy.” He was shorter than Victoria only reaching her chest and was a terrible show-off. His small hammer couldn’t really hurt Peter much and he looked a waste of time. Monsters were on both sides of the fight. Stephen hated her and she hated him and then slyly jeered “You think THAT’S going to beat ME!” and she replied smoothly “Yes.”
The fighting started, Brachydios and Stephen’s Brachydios clashed, Glacial and Agnaktor fired beams of ice and fire, Lagiacrus, Ivory and Abyssal threw the electricity out of their mouths, their spinal organs shimmering blue and Joe’s pack, his daughter Valery, Sam’s pack and his son David and Sebastian’s pack and his daughter Katie raced up to Stephen’s packs and clawed them. Jacob and Peter shot 
at each other Peter’s long sword piercing Jacob’s armour, Jacob only managed to trip Peter up for a few seconds before his next strike missed and he got up again slashing at his chest. Victoria slashed her Demolition Blades at Stephen and vice versa. Every 
time the great sword came down Victoria raised both blades in a cross blocking the strike. The weapon was heavy and Stephen was losing, his weapon always blocked by her, then Peter falling on the ground and Jacob smashed his shoulder was enough to distract her as Stephen used his free hand to fling Victoria’s swords while attacking with his. Victoria dodged nimbly and Peter tripped Jacob up the hammer 
flying out of his hands, he got up as Peter slashed at his stomach slicing him in half. Jacob was dead, and his upper half slid off the bottom half soon following. Blood spurted out of his body, soaking the ground and running with the water as Peter looked and saw Agnaktor shoot one of his fire beams missing Stephen’s Agnaktor and hitting Cha-Cha and Kayamba’s cage…
The weapons were out of Victoria’s hands and Stephen was ready to strike. They were above him and jumped down onto his head. He tried to fling them off and as he was doing this Victoria grabbed her right hand dual blade; Stephen flung Cha-Cha and Kayamba off until. Skint! Blood poured onto her blade, lining the crimson blades with ruby red liquid as Stephen stood motionless, then slowly Stephen’s head rolled off the body and the body fell to the ground. It was over, it was really over. No more deaths and no more fear. It was over…

Chapter 16
Nature
Nature was pleased, her long blonde hair flew in the breeze as the land sung and the sea rejoiced. Stephen was chosen to be the Guardian once the Guild wanted him to join to save the land, he declined and they accepted that until one day a wild Yokumo Village Azurous sprinted to the Misty Peeks and started to batter the Rathian killing her. That’s how it all started, and she sung her song, her voice brought warmth to the land. The burned villages cinders joined together to make the trees, flowers and houses, the terrified monsters crept out of their hiding places and the mountain tribes of the Yokumo Mountains came out of their caves and started rebuilding Yokumo Village. Victoria had a similar fate, her mother died as she was born, her dad killed by a Ceadeus, a Gold Rathian found her in a cradle as she floated after one of the nurses dropped her, the Gold Rathian brought the baby to her nest and, along with a Silver Rathalos, raised her. When she was 3, hunters found her alone in the nest with a Pink Rathian sleeping next to her, they took her to the guild and a woman, named Dimesiana, raised her for the rest of her life before the Guild Master took Victoria in. The old language was what Nature was fluent in and she knew that Roodansa means Cha-Cha and Ramanja means Kayamba, Yey Ba Sha means Guardian and Shanggasay means Victoria and Edgymo means Peter. 
Now it was time for her to go as she finished her song she became more transparent and the ground below her started to shimmer. Shinning gold dust ran up her body 
and before she disappeared she whispered “Ban sa Yey Ba Sha Shanggasay wan Roodansa, Ramanja danjay Edgymo majeyna, Mojenbay,” she vanished…

Chapter 17
The Guild
The sun shimmered and the day was at last peaceful, then a small boy with green eyes piped up “Is it true?” Fred nodded and a snobby girl of 10 snorted “Piffle if it IS true which I doubt it is, then why do we still hunt monsters and why don’t she visit I mean like yikes you can’t really want us to believe that do ya?” Then a small green man with a hula skirt came in shouted “It does-does seem shaka-farfetched doesn’t it alumpa?”

“Yam-ba-BA! Kayamba agree but it is a yam-ba good story aren’t it?” said ANOTHER little green man and then a familiar face and voice smiled “Now why do we still hunt monsters, evil ones and they DO want to hurt people, and about Victoria not visiting well I can’t do anything ‘bout that wait, I have because here I am!” she shouted as they watched her in awe as she pranced up to the girl and muttered in delight, “Hi Daisy how are you, I’m fine!” The children saw a difference in her -  she wasn’t shy anymore in not a lot more confident. Peter came in and was asked by the small boy with green eyes “Did you really kill Jacob?” he nodded saying delightfully “It was the best moment of my life.” Victoria’s foster parents came in and everyone gasped as she calmly said “Meet my parents Di the Gold Rathian and Ver the Silver Rathalos.” Their scales shimmered and the day was spent talking.
Chamberlyne was sad; he never saw his friend and hoped to see him during the fearful times but no. He never came. Then a voice said “You alright nya? You look down in the dumps, Chamberlyne!” He looked up and saw the chef from the Tanzian Grill. His friend…

Bomb!

by  Cat

“Mum, please can I have a tattoo. I have wanted one for so long I have the money, please”! “ no angel, you know  my rules when you are 18 you can do whatever you like but until and my answer is no”. This was so unfair. I was furious. “I hate you”! The words just came out of my mouth I hadn’t actually meant it. But I could see the hurt in my mum’s eyes. She whispered that she was going to the food stall. I just stood there. 

I then wandered off slowly to the tattoo parlour looking at all the different types of tattoos. There was a boy standing there staring at me standing wonderless and forgotten. Who was he? But before I had time to think the ground shook and everything around me trembled and collapsed. What on earth was going on? It took me seconds to realise there had been another terriost attack. I ran screaming for my mum but when I found her I was to late. I found her thrown on the ground. She was dead. 

At that moment I realised my mum is dead I am alone no one but me and the last thing I had said to her was that I hate her. 

After the hijacked plane had crashed into the building everyone was in total shock. It was on all the news channels. 103 dead 64 seriously injured. I was now living at my aunts’ house. Kristi. She was so like my mum. And living with her was miserable she had no idea how to look after me a 16 year old teenager who had just lost everything. School was no better everyone stared at me and showed a look of sympathy but no one talked to me. And at that my life slowly drifted on.

Part 2 (4 years later)

It was the anniversary of my mums death date and I was at the cemetery planting a rose bush when I heard something. I looked around and there was a figure standing in the trees. “Who’s there?” “Me” the figure said. “Who are you?” I asked starting to get worried. “I work for the a secret agency.” “My name is Stuart.” “I am here because I need to talk to you, but not here come with me.” “What make you think I am going to go off with a complete stranger!” “Well that is your decision but I would be grateful if you came” I had to think quickly. Easy question. Yes or no. I took yes I was curious to know what he had to say and he was about the same age as me so if anything happened I could take him on. 

He walked off through the trees I followed. There was a car parked outside the cemetery that had not been there before. He walked up to the car and opened the door for me. I got in. About half an hour later we pulled into a street and parked and he walked in to the building as I quickly followed him in. He took me to a room and what I seen made my feat give way I fell to the floor. Stuart caught me. “This is HQ.” 

All over the place was stuff to do with the terriost attack that my mum was killed in. “We are trying to find the culprits for the attack and we fear it may be jack Hamilton who caused the death of your mother and the other people”. I gasped. Jack Hamilton was known world wide he was the most deadly person on earth. After that I fainted. I don’t remember what happened after that. But now I knew I was going to take revenge on jack Hamilton. I was going to be his worst nightmare. I was going to kill him. 

I woke up, where was I this was not my bedroom. Then all at once I remembered what had just happened in the last 24 hours. I sat up and began to cry. I cried for all I had lost- my mum, my life, everything. “Keep down the noise im trying to sleep”. A girl walks in, she is beautiful, she has long red flowing hair and has deep blue sapphire eyes. “Oh sorry” I whisper. “Nah don’t worry about it”. “By the way my name is jade”. “Hi” I say and give her a shaky smile. 

“My name is angel”. We sat and talked for what seemed like ages, we seemed to be getting on. Jades mum and little brother died in the same bomb that killed my mum. I feel her sorrow and pain. 
The word bomb started ringing in my ears. Bomb bomb bomb. 

After a while jade asked me if I wanted food. I said “yes, please” I was starting to wonder what time it was cause I felt like I had been here for ever. Jade took me to what looked like a sort of kitchen. I sat down at the table. There were two other people there staring at me, I wonder who they were.  “So on the menu this morning there is, drum roll please, absolutely nothing, nah just kidding there toast if you want”. Thanks I said. “This is peter, his dad and sister were killed in the same bomb and this is victoria, her twin hallie was killed there as well”. “Nice to meet you” I said. It was nice to feel like I wasn’t alone in this whole disaster. It made me realise how sad other peoples life’s must be without there family. 

Peter looked a lot like someone I had seen before someone I had seen or met a long long time ago. Then suddenly like a bullet I remembered. Peter was the boy I saw standing at the market the day of the terriost attack.  “I… I remember you, you were there the day of the bomb” said peter.  I remember you to. 

Stuart walked in. “Guys were being attacked RUN!” Men in black started jumping through the windows and smashing through the doors. I stood and ran everyone else was out of site. I fell. 

Someone dragged me out of the door and down the staircase. I screamed out kicking and hitting him. I bite him on the hand, hard he yelled and let go but before I knew it I had a damp cloth over my mouth and I was out. 

I woke up in a dark room I tried to stand up but I felt drowsy and I had chains round my feet. Oh no I thought to myself. I screamed and thumped the walls till my hands were bloody but no one came. 

Hours maybe even a day later I heard what sounded like a key unlocking a door. I curled up at the corner of the room terrifed. A man walked in. He stood there staring at me. Who. Who are you what do you want. Shut it He snarled. I whimpered. My name is jack Hamilton. You are here because you are working for our  enemies the shadows. So that’s what they were called. He walked out of the room. And the key turned and locked the door. What am I going to do? ………..

Humanity’s Last Hope
by Hunter

Chapter 1: The Underground City

It was a bright cold day in April. I looked out my window, and saw everyone going about their normal business – although there was nothing normal about the world any more. 7 years ago, in 2020, relations between the USA and Russia broke down. War was declared and countries were forced to take sides. Most of Europe joined on the side of America, as well as Canada, New Zealand and Australia. Ex-soviet countries and the major Eastern powers joined with Russia. It was total devastation due to the use of nuclear and biological warfare, as well as conventional warfare. 99% of the world’s population were killed or became horrible scavenging mutants that roam the surface. The 1% that survived clumped together in underground settlements like California Hope, the town where I live. My name is Tommy Williams, and this is my story. I watched people down at the market from my apartment on the 2nd floor of apartment block 7 for a few minutes before getting dressed and heading to the market for food – and to see a good friend.

I strolled down to the market, towards the bakers stand and my good friend Karen Mitchell. “Hey there.” I said, while leaning on the stall. “Oh hi, want anything?” she replied “Or did you just come to see me?” She smiled, and I couldn’t help but realise how beautiful she was with her long flowing brown hair and green eyes. “Err, 6 slices of bread and a fruit bun.” I decided. 

“No problem” replied Karen as she gave me the food in the bag. I handed over half my tokens for the day. Tokens were like ration cards but you could spend them on anything. You would get 50 tokens a day, and different things cost different amounts of tokens. As I was walking away, Karen shouted me. “Tommy! Come to my apartment at 6PM tonight. We’ll have dinner and watch a movie.”

“I’d love that, I’ll be there!” I shouted back, while trying to hide the fact I was blushing, while I headed for a meeting with Edward Black, CEO of Geocorp Security.

Chapter 2: Geocorp

Geocorp Security, or the GST act as recon, soldiers and our police force, and their leader is the town mayor of sorts. Their HQ is a large building reaching to the surface, nearly a mile up. They also have a supply of jeeps and ATV’s for scouting and searching for supplies, and working for them gives more tokens than other jobs. 

When I arrived I was sent to Mr Black’s office for an interview. “So, Mr Williams, you want to join the GST?” asked Mr Black. “Yes sir. I do” I replied.

“Have you ever used a gun before, young man?” asked Mr Black. 

“No sir, I haven’t.” I said.

“We can teach you. Would you follow any order without hesitation?” replied Mr Black.

“Yes sir, I would” I said

“Alright then, here is your task. Kill Karen Mitchell…”

Even the thought of killing Karen sent a shiver down my spine. I suddenly realised that Edward Black was evil. I knew I couldn’t do it, but I carried on nevertheless. “Y-Yes sir.”

“Good.” He replied, “Here’s a silenced pistol and a few bullets. Use these somewhere private, and come and notify me of the location afterwards. I’ll send a team in to retrieve the body, and come up with an accident that could fit.” I took the pistol, and hid it under my coat. “Now, remember. Kill her and you can join Geocorp, don’t kill her, then I’ll kill you both, myself. Clear? Good, now on you go.” He sent me away, and I knew I had to think up a way to save Karen, 

without getting ourselves killed. I headed home, where I’d make a list of things I needed to do. 
When I completed the list, it looked like this:
1. Plan an escape route and collect a vehicle

2. Collect supplies (food, water, clothes, gas mask and guns)

3. Warn Karen and destroy evidence

4. Leave the city for the outside world.

I checked my watch. 12:24. 5 hours to get this done and get out…

Chapter 3: Preparation.

I prepared to find some exit routes. I checked the blueprints for the city. There were 3 options, the vents, the upper garage or the Geocorp Roof. The vents would leave us without transport, and probably not allow as many supplies. The main garage would require a pass, which are a little hard to find and the Geocorp Roof would be more or less suicide. Garage was the only suitable exit route, so I checked off step 1 of my list. I remembered I had a contact in the black market in the abandoned apartment block 13 so I prepared to head over. 

When I arrived, my contact, Frank Brill welcomed me. “A garage pass and a pistol.” I requested.

“Alright, that’s 30 tokens.” He replied, so I handed over a handful. “Thank you. You have saved a few lives giving me this.” I said, as I headed back to my apartment.

My apartment was small, with a bedroom with 1 bed, a sofa, a radio and a table with a couple of chairs. Nobody could get any luxuries, except from Geocorp, who could sometimes get coffee and tea. When I got back, I pulled my gas mask from under the bed and loaded up a bag of food, spare clothes, and some water. I then ticked off step 2 of my list. Now just to warn Karen, and get out of the city. 

I returned to the market with everything in my bag and rushed to the bakers stall, where Karen was. “Karen, listen! Edward Black and the rest of Geocorp hired me to kill you. To kill you! They are evil. 
We need to get out!” I exclaimed hoping not to be heard by others. “Eh, calm down,” replied Karen “Come to my apartment. You can tell your story there.” She replied calmly, and smiled.

When we arrived at her apartment she invited me inside. “Want a drink?” she asked.

Sure.” I replied

“Coming right up.” Karen disappeared into her kitchen, and I heard water running. A minute later she came out with two bottles of water. “Here is yours.” She passed me one of the cups and sat down beside me. “So, what was this story you were telling me back at the market?” Asked Karen.

Chapter 4: Executing the Plan

When I told Karen, she nearly dropped her coffee. “What! They- They want to kill me? I’ll kill Edward Black! That little…” She stopped before she got too angry. “It’s alright. I have a plan. Collect whatever you can. Clothes, food, drink and some knifes. Meet me in half an hour at the main garage doors.” I spoke calmly. “Alright. Thanks for warning me. I-I owe you my life.” replied Karen. She put her arms round me. I blushed.

“I’m so glad I have a friend like you. Most other people nowadays would kill me.” Said Karen, then released her grip on me. I started to walk out. “Once again, thanks.” Repeated Karen

“That’s what friends are for.” I replied, as I started to head for the main garage doors. 

Half an hour later Karen arrived at the garage, where I was waiting. “Hey, Karen! Over here.” I shouted, trying to get her attention. She heard me, and waved, before jogging over to the door, where I was waiting. “So, Tommy, have we got a vehicle sorted?” asked Karen.

“Yeah, I’ve decided on a black reinforced buggy with spare gas, and some room for our supplies.” I answered.

“One more thing, how long do we have before Geocorp come chasing?” Karen asked again.

“They’ll be after us in the morning, so around 12 hours to get away from the town. Oh, and I wouldn’t be surprised if they use helicopters or prototype VTOL jets, or Mr Black comes after us himself.” I spoke quietly.

“We’ll be fine.” Said Karen.

We walked to the door and swiped our passes. It opened and we walked in.

The garage was filled to the brim with off-road vehicles of all shapes and sizes, from ATVs and Dirt Bikes to dune buggies and SUV’s. We quickly found the buggy I’d decided on, then loaded our backpacks into the back. We then shoved our jerry cans on the side, and got in. “Goodbye California Hope. Hello wasteland.”

Chapter 5: The Wasteland

I turned the key then hit the gas and barrelled out the main door. The light was blinding. 6 years since I was outside, and I could hardly see a thing. I turned on the sun visor in my gas mask, and the light cleared. There was destruction everywhere. Craters the size of football fields and bigger lined the landscape. A once great highway lay in ruin, with gigantic pieces on the ground. In the distance I could see the wreck of San Francisco. “We’re headed there” I pointed towards the ruined city. “We should be there in about an hour.” I said, before planting the pedal to the metal. We shot forwards, and within a few minutes, we couldn’t see the entrance to the city.

An hour later I slowly drove through the ruined city. I came up to the Golden Gate Bridge, only to find the roadway was collapsed half way along it. I cursed, and then turned back; trying to find 
somewhere we could shelter overnight. By this time the sky was darkening and I knew what was coming. Hordes of mutant creatures came out at night. Once or twice a mutant had broken into the city, 

and then killed someone. This had nearly happened to me, but I was able to kill the mutant with a kitchen knife. Anyway – Back to the present. We were slowly driving around the city, when a few bandits, armed with AK47’s charged out of the nearby buildings. “Give us your supplies and that nice little buggy of yours, and you can live. Otherwise prepare to die.” I thought over my options. I could either give them our supplies and buggy, I could try and shoot them, or we could throttle it, and escape. I decided to run, so hit the gas, and we barrelled away from the bandits. They sprayed bullets everywhere, but none hit the vehicle. We were safe, for now. We found a small lockup, where we hid the buggy, and laid out our tent and sleeping bags, before preparing to sleep.

While I was sleeping, I kept managing to have nightmares about dying. They were all gruesome deaths. One was me and Karen being ripped apart and slowly roasted over a fire by mutants. Another was our buggy exploding into a fireball, and incinerating us. The final, and worst one was Geocorp torturing us in ways unimaginable, before executing us. I hoped none of these would ever happen.

Chapter 6 : We Meet Again

We were awoken by a sudden explosion, and I looked out the tent. The worst thing possible. Geocorp, Bandits and Mutants fighting. Some of the bandits we saw last night were pinned down in a multi-storey car park, being constantly fired upon by what looked like an elite squad of Geocorp soldiers. Amongst the 

crowd I saw a familiar face. Edward Black. Leader of Geocorp, and the most evil person I know. And every so often a rogue mutant returning to its shelter for the day would find the conflict and kill someone on one of the sides. Another explosion shook the lockup, and I heard a thunderous crash, as the car park where the bandits 
were holding out in began to collapse. Desperate bandits jumped out the collapsing building, only to be executed by the squad of elites.

We slunk back into the tent and I said, “What do we do? They’ll find us eventually. Fighting’s no good either.”

Karen replied, “We could run.”

“They’d gun us down before we made it down this street.” I said, with genuine fear in my voice.

“Unless we shoot Mr Black, then speed away. It’d spread chaos through the soldiers.” she replied.

“We’ll try. No counting on it, but we’ll try.” I said.

We unpacked the tent quickly, and piled supplies into the buggy. I poked my head out, and pulled the gun Mr Black had given me the day before from its 

holster. I scanned the area. Mr Black was standing with his back turned, giving a speech to his squad. The gun shook in my hands, and I raised it. I put my finger on the trigger, and squeezed. The bullet flew through the air, and I squeezed again, releasing another shot towards Mr Black. The first shot hit him in the back, and the second shot smashed through his right leg. He fell forwards, dead. Or so I thought. It was chaos, the soldiers were cursing and sending bullets flying towards our location. One narrowly missed Karen as I jumped into the drivers seat of the buggy, and floored it. On our way out we hit a few soldiers gathering outside, and sent them flying. We sped away, with constant gunfire behind us. We were free. At last. We would find somewhere safe to spend the rest of our life in. Free from the horrors of Geocorp. They were ended.

The Legend 
of the
Chinese Assassin

by 
Phoenix

Chapter 1: The Contract Arrives

The scent in the air is rich with food I think. I sit at the table picking at my rice and noodles. After a while I just I gulp down my sake greedily. Suddenly a tall man in a hood approaches me. He sits down. He slams some yen down on the table and with that gives me a piece of paper written in Chinese characters: 

Dear Peter 

We had the man you were looking but with the help of some soldiers he managed to escape. He is hiding in Octarien Castle. Your mission is to silently knock him out, give him to our safe house and the rest of the pay is yours. 

                                                  signed Erin

Why couldn't they just not let him escape in the first place. I finish up my food and go to my hideout. This will not be fun I say under my breath.

Chapter 2: Old Memories

I know I've been at this stuff a long time. I made my kill for the guild when I was 16 and was recruited in to the assassin guild. My name is Peter and I have curly brown hair and sea green eyes I have a collection of friends in the guild. I knew the man in this contract a long time ago I think in my head. I know what Erin will do: torture him to give the name of his friends and then she will kill him. It’s all the same to her - same routine every time I take someone in knocked out.  

I keep on thinking so hard I walk into the door leading to my hideout. Stupid I say in my head. I knock on the door three times in quick success and it opens. I step aside and a spear comes shooting past me. I grab it in mid flight and hurl it back with deadly accuracy. It spears the trap and I walk straight in. That trap is getting too old for you comes a voice from 
behind the door. You don’t say captain obvious. I laugh at this as I turn round to see Euan smiling. ‘Come on. Let’s alert the others we have a contract.’

Chapter 3: Preparations

We run down stairs and call everyone to the armoury. My job is rounding up Niamh, Luke, Dillon and Jade while Euan rounds up Liam, Sean, Aiden and Mark. I grab my cloak as I run through a room and slide down a pole; adjusting the cloak as I slide down. I pull my hood over my face and put up my mask. Everyone else will be doing the same as me right now I make a final leap over a gaping hole. I send out a grabbling hook it connects with the hard ceiling but stays put. I swing over to a raised platform and roll to find everyone standing in a circle. The rock drops as my hook returns to its launcher. So what is it this time asks Niamh, as we start attaching our bungees to the metal hooks planted into the ground. A contract I say as I fall back into the abyss, unhook myself flip and land onto the hard stone ground. I love that route Luke says. Everyone does, says Euan. We all run into the room containing the weapons. Silent weapons if you don’t mind, I say to Mark as he puts back the battle axe he just unhitched. In the end I decide to take my knife, bow and arrows, throwing knifes, throwing blades and my chain blade which I whirl around my head before putting it back on my satchel. I sling the bow a arrows on my back along with my chain blade. I shove my throwing knifes in to my newly built knife belt. I store my short knife in my boot and store my throwing blades shaped like needles in to my hand guards. Everyone is prepared. I split them up in pairs. Euan is with Dillon, Mark with Jade, Sean with Aiden and Liam pairs up with Sean and Aiden which leaves you and me I say to Niamh. I give everyone their positions and with that I walk off flipping my knife in my hand.    

Chapter 4: 2 Predators 1 Prey

I scale the roof with Niamh you looking forward to this Niamh asks me. No I say through gritted teeth. Why not. I liked this guy a while a go. I am not looking forward to what Erin is- Look says Niamh! Movement on the roofs. Over there her finger shows me 2 figures leaping from roof to roof. Just keep with the contract I say. Agreed Niamh says. I don’t like the look of this I say. Come on get over it. I can’t help it whenever I think of another contract I always think of Japan. I know says Niamh but our home is gone now Peter you saw it being burnt to the ground and the daimyo with Sean 
killing and slaughtering everyone. And he still has Victoria in his grasp I say with misery. Look out screams Niamh rugby tackling me to the ground. I see volleys of arrows coming from the dark and I roll over Niamh protecting her from the incoming missiles. One of them strikes me in the back but the leather armour I am wearing takes the impact. Get up I shout rolling off her and scrambling up again. An arrow catches her in the leg making her fall. I carry her on my shoulder finding a large roof. I set her aside behind it. I will find who did this to you I whisper in her ear. And with that I set off into the darkness. I can hear her screaming at me to come back. I will, I shout back.

Chapter 5

Peace or War

I am keeping low - switching cover-to-cover. Hold your fire I try shouting to the attackers. The arrows stop and I hear footsteps coming towards me and I feel my hand reaching for my chain blade. I spin out and let my chain blade fly. It whirls around my attackers drawing a sword from one of their waists and bringing it down on the chain blade snapping it in place. The attackers are struggling like fish out of land. Its no use I say drawing my knife from my boot. They’ve both stopped now, eyes on the blade in my hand. I flip once and I begin reaching for piece of rope in my hand. Please don’t begs a voice from one of the assassins.
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